Washington State Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction Direct Certification System User's Manual

2019-20

Leanne Eko, RD, SNS Director of Child Nutrition Services

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	1
Who Uses the Direct Certification System?	1
Why Use the Direct Certification System?	1
How Often Should Data Be Downloaded?	2
How to Use This Manual	2
Have Questions? Need Help?	2
Getting Around the Direct Certification System	4
Accessing the System	4
Using the Page Tabs	4
Staying Apprised of System Messages	4
Logging Out	4
Using the Direct Certification Dashboard	5
Reading the New Matches Notification	5
Reviewing Child Nutrition Announcements	5
Accessing Online Reference Materials	6
Finding Customer Support Information	6
Public LEAs: Using the Direct Certification System	7
Overview	7
Using District List to Display Officially Enrolled Matched Students	7
Reviewing Near Matches	7
Displaying All Exact Matches	13
Displaying New and Changed Exact Matches	15
Using Student Search to Find Additional Student Matches	17
Accessing Student Search	17
Entering Search Criteria	18
Processing Student IDs	19
Verifying a Student's Identity	20
Student Search Outcomes	21

Starting a New Search	23
Troubleshooting for Public LEAs	24
Issue: Student is Enrolled in My LEA but Does Not Appear in My LEA's District List	24
Issue: My District List Match Count is Lower than Expected at Beginning of School Yea	ır25
Issue: Student Search Does Not Find a Particular Student Who is Enrolled in My LEA	25
Issue: My District List Displays Multiple Different Matches for the Same Student	26
Issue: My POS System Cannot Process the Match List That I Downloaded	27
Private LEAs: Using the Direct Certification System	28
Using Student Search to Find Student Matches	28
Student Search Outcomes	28
Creating and Uploading a Student List	28
Manually Entering Search Criteria	32
Displaying Exact Matches	33
Reviewing Possible Matches	34
When No Matches are Found	34
Starting a New Search	34
Troubleshooting for Private LEAs	35
Issue: Student Search Does Not Find a Particular Student Who is Enrolled in My LEA	35

Version History

Version	Date	Author	Comments
1.0	8/1/2013	Jeff Parks	User's manual supporting initial release of revamped OSPI Child Nutrition Direct Certification system
1.1	8/30/2013	Jeff Parks	Added instructions for including CEDARS I10 code in public LEA downloads, and added section "Troubleshooting for Public LEAs."
1.2	5/21/2014	Jeff Parks	Added instructions for using Near Matches feature.
1.3	1/27/2015	Carol Ventura	Added general explanation regarding eligibility.
1.4	3/12/2015	Carol Ventura	Added note regarding resolving browser issues when viewing New/Changed Matches; Added sub-title for finding an Exact Match using the Student Search.
1.5	7/9/19	Wendy Barkley	Added updated information about Student Search.

Introduction

Welcome to the Direct Certification System User's Manual. The Direct Certification System was developed to support the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and the School Breakfast Program (SBP) administered by the Washington State Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) Child Nutrition Services.

Direct certification is the process of identifying students who are eligible to receive free meals because their household receives assistance through a qualifying program administered by the Washington State Department of Social and Health Services (DSHS). Direct certification allows eligible students to receive free meals without the need for household application. The Direct Certification system may be used to certify students who receive assistance through the Basic Food or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) programs, as well as students who have been placed in foster care and migrant students.

In school year 2017-18, Washington state began participating in a U.S. Department of Agriculture pilot program to directly certify students for MAGI children's Medicaid age 19 and under which is a means tested income program. Children participating in this program, only, are now directly certified for free or reduced price meals.

The Direct Certification system is used to identify these qualified students to their Local Education Agencies (LEAs), who in turn are responsible for serving meals to these students. The Direct Certification system is made available through OSPI's Education Data System (EDS) Web portal.

Who Uses the Direct Certification System?

The Direct Certification system is used primarily by food service office personnel at each LEA. Additionally, LEA data management personnel can use the system to access and download student data as needed.

Why Use the Direct Certification System?

In order to ensure that your eligible students are receiving free meals through direct certification, it is necessary for your LEA to have up-to-date information about which students are eligible. The Direct Certification system is updated daily with newly-eligible students. By accessing this data regularly, your LEA will be able to serve eligible students in a timely manner, and also will be able to maximize the number of students accurately reported as served, for reimbursement purposes. The Direct Certification system allows you to download or print data about your LEA's directly certified students, giving you an official record confirming that they are eligible to be served free meals.

The Direct Certification system identifies the method through which a student was directly certified (e.g., Basic Food, TANF, or foster care). This information must be used by each food

service office when submitting a Verification Summary Report. Additionally, the Direct Certification system provides a qualification code for each of these methods, and public LEA district data managers must include these codes when submitting student data to the Comprehensive Education Data and Research System (CEDARS).

How Often Should Data Be Downloaded?

Each LEA participating in the National School Lunch Program or School Breakfast Program is required to download student direct certification data at a minimum of three times per school year, as follows:

- At or around the beginning of the school year;
- Three months after the initial effort; and
- Six months after the initial effort.

However, OSPI strongly encourages LEAs to download direct certification matches often and recent passage of the law entitled, Hunger Free Students Bill of Rights now requires LEAs to download direct certification matches monthly. . OSPI receives the latest eligibility data from DSHS on a daily basis. The more frequently you download, the better you will be able to serve free meals to eligible students.

How to Use This Manual

The Direct Certification system is used differently depending on whether you belong to a public or private LEA. Users in public LEAs have access to certain features that are not relevant to users in private LEAs, and vice-versa. Therefore, the Direct Certification System User's Manual contains separate sections geared toward public LEA users and private LEA users.

All users should begin by reading the following sections:

- Getting Around the Direct Certification System, pg. 4
- Using the Direct Certification Dashboard, pg. 5

Once you have read these two sections and familiarized yourself with the layout of the Direct Certification system, you can proceed to the section relevant to your LEA, either:

• Public LEAs: Using the Direct Certification

System, pg. 7 or

• Private LEAs: Using the Direct Certification System, pg. 28

Have Questions? Need Help?

If you have any questions or problems while using the Direct Certification system, consult the troubleshooting section provided in this manual for your type of LEA. Since they use the system differently, public LEAs and private LEAs are liable to encounter different issues while using the system, so the most common questions for each type of LEA are addressed

separately. Refer to the appropriate troubleshooting section for your LEA type:

- Troubleshooting for Public LEAs, pg. 24
- Troubleshooting for Private LEAs, pg. 35

If your issue is not addressed by this troubleshooting information, please contact the appropriate OSPI personnel for help.

For business- and process-related questions dealing with direct certification or the National School Lunch Program, contact your LEA's assigned School Nutrition Program Specialist.

For technical questions regarding use of the Direct Certification system, contact OSPI Customer Support by calling 1-800-725-4311 or e-mailing customersupport@k12.wa.us.

Getting Around the Direct Certification System

Accessing the System

The Direct Certification system is accessed via OSPI's EDS Web portal, so an EDS account is needed, and your EDS account must be granted access to the Direct Certification system. If you do not have an EDS account, or your account does not have access to the Direct Certification system, contact your District Data Security Manager for assistance.

Once you have logged into the EDS portal, in your list of available applications, click the Direct Certification link.

Using the Page Tabs

A series of tabs is displayed above the top of the pages of the Direct Certification system. These tabs provide access to the different pages of the system. Click a tab to navigate to the corresponding page. The District List tab displays a drop-down menu when clicked. In the drop-down menu, click the name of the specific page that you want to access.

Staying Apprised of System Messages

In the event that a system-wide message needs to be communicated to users of the Direct Certification system, OSPI Customer Support will post the appropriate message. These system messages are displayed in a banner that appears across the top of every page in the system.

System messages are used to inform users of scheduled downtime, limited system availability, and other important technical information about the Direct Certification system.

Logging Out

When you have finished using the Direct Certification system, you can log out by clicking the Logout link found at the top-right corner of each page of the system. The system will also automatically time out your session after a period of non-use.

Using the Direct Certification Dashboard

The Dashboard is the default page displayed when you begin a new Direct Certification session. This page provides timely data and announcements, and quick access to supporting information for Direct Certification.

User's Manual



Reading the New Matches Notification

If you belong to a public LEA, the New Matches area provides you with a count of your LEA's latest direct certification matches. The count is calculated as the number of matches identified since the last day (prior to today) when you viewed matches for your LEA.

If you belong to a private LEA, the Direct Certification system does not store any information about your matches or student population, so you will not see the New Matches area.

Reviewing Child Nutrition Announcements

The Child Nutrition Announcements area displays important bulletins related to direct certification, posted by the OSPI Child Nutrition staff. The most recent bulletin posted is the top announcement displayed in the Child Nutrition Announcements area. Previous bulletins are displayed below the most recent announcement, in the Past Announcements area. To view any past announcements, click the desired announcement's headline.

Accessing Online Reference Materials

Links to important documents and Web sites related to direct certification business processes or the Direct Certification system are provided in the Online Reference Materials area. Click any of the links to access the associated document or Web site.

Finding Customer Support Information

Contact information for OSPI Customer Support is displayed in the Customer Support area at the bottom-right corner of the Dashboard page. Contact Customer Support if you have any technical questions about or problems with the Direct Certification system.

If you have questions regarding the National School Lunch Program or direct certification business processes, do not contact OSPI Customer Support. Instead, please contact your LEA's assigned School Nutrition Program Specialist.

Public LEAs: Using the Direct Certification System

Overview

Students are added throughout the school year as they become eligible.

Users from public LEAs can find and display directly certified students using both of the matching features provided by the Direct Certification system. District List and Student Search.

- District List allows you to display students in your LEA who have been matched programmatically by the Direct Certification system, or manually by your or another user.
- Student Search provides you with the ability to manually search for students who, for a number of different reasons, might not be displayed via District List.

Once a student is directly certified they remain certified for the remainder of the school year and will not be removed. This section will guide you through using the Direct Certification system to find directly certified students in your public LEA.

Using District List to Display Officially Enrolled Matched Students

The District List feature displays direct certification matches based on your LEA's official student enrollment population. On a daily basis, the Direct Certification system compares the latest eligibility data from DSHS with the latest student enrollment records stored in CEDARS, and determines if there are any new matching records between these two sets of data. When an exact match is found, it is permanently stored for future reference.

As a public LEA user, District List is your primary source of direct certification matches.

Reviewing Near Matches

In addition to exact matches, the system also identifies near matches. Near matches are reasonably close, but not so close that the system can consider them to be exact. These near matches are made available for you to manually review and make a final determination. The Near Matches feature allow you to review those Direct Certification matches that have been identified by the Direct Certification system that are not quite close enough to be automatically matched.

Accessing Near Matches

To access the Near Matches feature, hover the pointer over the District List tab, and in the menu that appears click Near Matches.



Near Matches Summary Page

When you first access the Near Matches feature, the summary page is displayed, listing the students currently enrolled in your district for which at least one near match has been identified.

lear Mat	ches				Chec	k box, toggles	between di	splaying	or
lumber of stu	kaud Diatrics idents with near matches	235 4 5	Number of no tudents curren	ear-match tly displayed	hidir	ng previously	rejected nea	r matche	es ao
	School Name	State Stdnt ID	District Stdnt ID	Last Name	First Name	Middle Name	Birth Date	Gender	
Resolve	Wiler Sorier High	2875340873	etset	AAAA12	-086.675.04	18354	0114/1899	м	^
Resolve	the end thementaria bithesi	8887396383	17444	4,5482- 8,8788	Rouses		61/26/2018	м	1
Resolve	Click to	resolve nea	r matches	ANDIRION	BLIDABETH	30MB	32/12/1999	F	
Resolve 4	identif	fied for this	student	Ardiston	2045	AVTRUEX		м	
Resolve	A Dear Baranary	4010106080	44434	ANDERSON-	3404	AUXIMUS	Scroll bar	F	*
Resolve	Toplics Parametery	2280967549	20000	ANER, LONG	344888		15152009	м	
Resolve	A Linear Hamanney	2000830048	4877	4144420	SAME .		11/18/2002	F	
Resolve	A 2 West Information	6171206334	4090	4428	INFOLA	4,0140064	64/54/0000	F	
Resolve	Report Day Deventary	7647188247	1999	AREASO ONCE	po.		41/12/2009	E.	
Resolve	1 Hi biaantahuas High Sahaal	10100044	4249	AADHI	RARDAD		67,12,756	м	
Resolve	J H Hambercer High Tahwal	6061204137	4284	AAAD.D	389-55	3	2022/1008	м	
Resolve	Envara Barranney Advant	6020120225	13444	BACER	ADAL	074814	11/16/2207	м	~

The page includes the following features:

- The number of students with near matches is displayed at the top left.
- Students are listed in the grid in alphabetical order by last name.
- By default, only non-rejected matches are displayed on the summary screen. To
 also display students for whom matches were previously rejected, select the Include
 Previously Rejected Matches check box. Previously rejected matches are
 highlighted in red.
- To the left of each student record is a Resolve button. Click this button to view the near matches that have been identified for this student.

Near Matches Detail Page

When you click the Resolve button next to any student record on the Near Matches summary page, the Near Matches Detail page for that student record is displayed.

Near Ma	atches Detai Schaal Bistolet Near Match Summ		Click to re Sur	turn to Nea mmary pag	e Match							
Near Matc	hes for Manual T	PART PYEC	• • S	itudent's na	ame			CEDAR	S data	for this stu	dent	
Direct Cert	fication near match	nes were identif	led for the following	ng student:			_	-				
School N	ame	Last Name	First Name	Middle Name	Birth Da	te	Gender	State 5	itdat Id	District Stdnt	Id Last 4 of S	SN
General P	uaru Flamamary Kehaol (SARDA		AMOUNTS	AM6L	10125-22	101	F	324388	376	4713		
Are any of are not sur	the students listed e, you do not have School Name	below the same to make a sele Last Name	e as the student sl ction. First Name	hown above? If so Middle Name	a. click the M a Birth Date	TA	button for th	DSHS d	ata for atches	clients wh with this st	o are near- udent	
Match	1ST GRADER	444114	ANDEL		4/56/20004	•		NHEE	N	2825	Show Address	^
Match		GARDA	ANDR		10.11.2008	0		2012272	N	4408	Show Address	
Match		GAADA PORKIG	ANDRALE	3	el/N/Olisa	0		2048047	N	3646.	Show Address	
Click t	to select this	client as student		Click	if none a match	of t wi	he DSH th this s	S clients tudent]	Click	o display s address	
Click t a ma	co select this atch for this Click	client as student to display	detail page	Click are	if none a match No Matches	of t	he DSH: th this s	S clients tudent lick to di] splay d	Click t client	o display s address	

The Near Matches Detail page contains two grids of data:

- The top grid contains your district's CEDARS enrollment data for the selected student. For the majority of students, only one enrollment record is displayed. However, if a student is currently enrolled in multiple schools within your district, all of the student's current enrollments are displayed.
- The bottom grid contains the DSHS client record or records that were identified as being near matches for the student.

Displaying Address Information

When determining if a particular DSHS client record is a match for one of your students, it may be helpful to view the address data for that client record, to see if it matches the student address that you may have on file. Note that CEDARS does not contain address data, so you would need to obtain a student's address through other means.

To display the address for a particular DSHS client record, click the Show Address button to the right of that record.

	School Name	Last Name	First Name	Middle Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food ID	Foster Care	Last 4 of SSN	
latch	1ST GRADER	GARCIN	ANGEL		\$735,2006	0	10142400	N	7975	Show Address
latch ·		canca -	0.020		10/22/2005	0	18030373	N	6408	Show Address
latch		caeca rossas	ANOILIN.	3	49/50/2014	0	12140247	N	001.0	Show Address

When you click Show Address, the address information for the selected DSHS client is displayed below the client data grid. Both the selected client and the address information are highlighted in green, to help you to clearly identify the client record to which the address belongs.

Selecting a Match

When you have determined that a particular DSHS client record is a match for the displayed CEDARS student record, click the Match button to the left of the client record.

A dialog box is displayed, asking you to confirm that you want to save the match.

Confirm Match ×
The match you selected will be saved in the Direct Certification system and will be available for download with your other District List matches. Do you wish to proceed?
Yes, Save Match No, Go Back

To confirm the match, click Yes, Save Match. If you do not wish to save the match, click No,

Go Back. When you click Yes, Save Match, the system displays the Near Match Detail page for

the next near

match identified for your district.

When you save a match, the student record is removed from the Near Matches feature, and

immediately becomes available for download via your District List. The CEDARS student record and DSHS client record will remain matched in the system for future years.

In the event that you save a match in error, contact OSPI Customer Support for assistance.

Rejecting Matches

If you determine that none of the near-match DSHS client records shown are matches for the student, you have the option of rejecting these near matches. Rejecting near matches removes them from your district's near matches list. Rejected near matches can always be viewed again by selecting the Include Previously Rejected Matches check box on the Near Matches summary page.

To reject near-match DSHS client records for a student, click the No Matches button below the DSHS client data grid.



When you click No Matches, the system displays the Near Match Detail page for the next near match identified for your district.

When multiple DSHS client records have been identified as near matches for a student record, rejecting matches is an all-or-nothing proposition. For example, if three near-match DSHS client records are identified for a student and you click the No Matches button, all three of those DSHS client records will be rejected as matches for that particular student record.

If another near-match DSHS client record is identified for this student in the future, the student record will again be presented for review so that you can compare the student data with the new near-match client record. Additionally, if DSHS submits any changes to a rejected DSHS client record that increase the likelihood of a match, that previously rejected match will again be displayed for review.

Paging Through Near Matches

You can move directly from the Near Match Detail page for one student to the Near Match Detail page for the next, in the same order in which the students are listed on the Near Matches summary page. This allows you to quickly work through your district's near matches list. Working this list on a regular basis will help you to ensure that as many eligible students as possible are being directly certified.

To move backwards or forwards through Near Match Detail pages, click the Previous or Next buttons at the bottom of the page.

Returning to the Near Matches Summary

To return to the Near Matches summary page, click the Back to Near Match Summary link at the top of the Near Matches Detail page.



Displaying All Exact Matches

When you select the All Matches option for District List, the Direct Certification system displays all exact matches between DSHS and CEDARS records that have been identified for your LEA.

Overview of the All Matches Page

The All Matches page is shown below, with the various areas of the page called out.



About Each Student's CEDARS Enrollment Status

When the Direct Certification system finds exact matches between DSHS and CEDARS data, it divides these exact matches into two different categories based on each student's specific enrollment status in CEDARS as it relates to your LEA. These two categories are called Definitely Enrolled and Potentially Enrolled.

A matched student is determined to be Definitely Enrolled if, according to the latest data that your LEA has uploaded to CEDARS, the student is currently enrolled in your LEA.

A student is determined to be Potentially Enrolled if they meet one or both of the following criteria:

- The student is not currently enrolled in your LEA (per CEDARS), but someone from your LEA has used the CEDARS Student Records Exchange feature to request the student's records from another LEA.
- The student is not currently enrolled in <u>any LEA</u> (per CEDARS), but was enrolled in your LEA within the past three school years.

When viewing your LEA's exact matches in District List, you have the ability to toggle between seeing just Definitely Enrolled matches (the default view), or seeing both Definitely Enrolled and Potentially Enrolled matches.

NOTE: At the beginning of the school year, all students will display as potentially enrolled in the LEA. This is because the LEA has not yet updated school year enrollment. District Data Managers are required to update LEA enrollment no later than October 15th of each year. Potentially enrolled students are directly certified for school meals.

Viewing All Matches for Your LEA To display all of the matches identified for your LEA:

1. Hover the pointer over the District List tab, and in the menu that appears click All Matches.



 By default, only Definitely Enrolled matches are displayed. If you would like to also display Potentially Enrolled matches, click Include Potentially Enrolled Students. Each student's enrollment status is displayed in the CEDARS Status column.

To toggle the displayed students back to including just those who are Definitely Enrolled, click

Show Only Definitely Enrolled Students.

3. Review the matches displayed for your LEA.

By default, matches are sorted by Last Name, then First Name. You can re-sort the data yourself if you would like to see the matches displayed in a different order. Click the heading of any column to sort the matches in ascending order (A to Z, or lowest to highest number) on that column. Click that same heading again to sort the matches in descending order on that column.

The match grid displays 100 rows per page. To go to another page of results, scroll to the bottom of the page and click the desired page number or an arrow button, as appropriate.

- 4. To keep an electronic copy of your LEA's matches, either as proof of direct certification or to upload to your LEA's food service point-of-sale (POS) system, download your matches in the appropriate available format. If your POS is configured to accept the "reason qualified" code for each student, also known as the CEDARS I10 code, select the Include CEDARS I10 Code in Download check box. Next, expand the Please select a download format list box, click your desired download format, and click Download. The available formats are:
 - Excel (.xls)
 - CSV (Comma-Separated Value text file)
 - TXT (Tab-delimited text file)

If you will be uploading your LEA's matches to a POS system, check with your POS system's vendor if you are unsure of which file format you require.

If you would rather print a copy of your LEA's matches instead of downloading, click Print.

Displaying New and Changed Exact Matches

You may not always wish to display all matches for your LEA, and may instead just want to see those matches that either are new or have had changes to significant data. Most Direct Certification system users will perform an initial search of all Direct Certification matches for their LEA at the beginning of the school year, and then for the remainder of the school year access only new and changed matches. The New/Changed Matches page allows you to do this.

A new match is one that has been identified by the Direct Certification system since you last accessed your LEA's matches. A changed match is one that was previously identified as new that has had a change to the data that DSHS reports to OSPI Child Nutrition.

Overview of the New/Changed Matches Page

The default view of New/Changed Matches page is shown below, with the various areas of the page called out.

Dashboard	District List *	Student Search							
									Logout >
New/Cha	nged Matc	Your LEA							
Anytown Scho	ool District +								
Include in	liet						Displa	ay options	
Include in	iist.	-					/		
Matche	s new or change	d since you last viewed	your district's	s mato	hes (before to	day) (Last vi	ewed on 8/1/	2013 7:12:39 PM)
Matche	s new or change	d between 8/1/2013	Ē	and a	3/2/2013				
Perform Sea	rch ← P	erform Search but	tton						

When you perform a search, the search results are displayed below the area shown in the above image. The search results are presented in the same format as on the All Matches page.

Viewing All New or Changed Matches for Your LEA

To display all of the new or changed matches identified for your LEA:

1. Hover the pointer over the District List tab, and in the menu that appears click New/Changed Matches.



- 2. In the "Include in list" area, select the desired option:
 - Matches new or changed since you last viewed your district's matches (before today) This option performs a search that returns new and changed matches identified since the day after you last accessed your LEA's latest matches. The Direct Certification system stores this last-accessed date so that you don't have to.
 - Matches new or changed between <start date> and <end date> This option performs a search that returns new and changed matches identified during the date range that you specify. If you select this option, enter the desired start date and end date for your search in the boxes provided.

After you select your desired option, click Perform Search.

Note: If you are experiencing problems viewing only new and/or changed matches, you may need to check your Internet browser settings

- 1. Click tools, Internet Options
- 2. Under Browser History, click Settings
- 3. Check the radio button for "Every time I visit the webpage"
- 4. Click Ok
- 3. By default, only Definitely Enrolled matches are displayed. If you would like to also display Potentially Enrolled matches, click Include Potentially Enrolled Students. Each student's enrollment status is displayed in the CEDARS Status column. (See "About Each Student's CEDARS Enrollment Status" on page 13 for more information on the two different enrollment statuses.)

To toggle the displayed students back to including just those who are Definitely Enrolled, click

Show Only Definitely Enrolled Students.

4. Review the matches displayed for your LEA.

By default, matches are sorted by Last Name, then First Name. You can re-sort the data yourself if you would like to see the matches displayed in a different order. Click the heading of any column to sort the matches in ascending order (A to Z, or lowest to highest number) on that column. Click that same heading again to sort the matches in descending order on that column.

The match grid displays 100 rows per page. To go to another page of results, scroll to the bottom of the page and click the desired page number or an arrow button, as appropriate.

- 5. To keep an electronic copy of your LEA's matches, either as proof of direct certification or to upload to your LEA's food service point-of-sale (POS) system, download your matches in the appropriate available format. If your POS is configured to accept the "reason qualified" code for each student, also known as the CEDARS I10 code, select the Include CEDARS I10 Code in Download check box. Next, expand the Please select a download format list box, click your desired download format, and click Download. The available formats are:
 - Excel (.xls)
 - CSV (Comma-Separated Value text file)
 - TXT (Tab-delimited text file)

If you will be uploading your LEA's matches to a POS system, check with your POS system's vendor if you are unsure of which file format you require.

If you would rather print a copy of your LEA's matches instead of downloading, click Print.

Using Student Search to Find Additional Student Matches

The bulk of your LEA's direct certification matches will be found automatically by the system and displayed in District List, and most of the remaining matches will be presented to you for review in Near Matches, but there may also be times when you need to use Student Search to manually search for students, to see if they are eligible to receive free meals through direct certification. Whereas the matches shown in Near Matches and District List are found by comparing records received from DSHS to records stored in CEDARS, Student Search allows you to enter search criteria and compare it against DSHS records.

Some examples of times when you should use Student Search are:

- A student is enrolled in your LEA, but your LEA has not yet reported the student's enrollment to CEDARS, so the student cannot yet be matched by District List.
- A student was registered for benefits with DSHS under a different name or birth date than the ones used to enroll the student in your LEA. Even if your LEA has reported the student's enrollment to CEDARS, if the name or birth date reported by your LEA is significantly different than the name or birth date on file with DSHS, the system may not be able to match the records closely enough even to display them in Near Matches. If you know the demographic data that the student's parent provided to DSHS, you can search for the student using this information.

Accessing Student Search

To access Student Search, click the Student Search tab.

Direct Certification Free Lunch	රේවා Hom	e Help	Feedback
Dashboard District List Student Search Reports Admin			Logout
Direct Certification Public School Search Private School Online Search	Yak	ima Scho	ol District
New & Near Matches Private School Upload File Search			
There are currently 3 unresolved near matches that have been identified in your district and need review. Selec	t District List > Near Matches to review these near matches.		
Since you last viewed new matches on 6/12/2019, the Direct Certification system has identified no new or char	ged exact matches for free and/or reduced eligibility in your district.		
Child Nutrition Announcements	Online Reference Material		
All Matches for Free/Reduced by Medicaid - Incorrect Format - FIXED	Program Information		
8/3/2018 10:10:00 AM -	OSPI Child Nutrition Services Web Site		
This issue has been resolved. Thank you for your patience	Free and Reduced Price Information		
	Eligibility Manual for School Meals (USDA)		
	Direct Certification System Information		
	 Direct Certification System User's Manual 		
	Direct Certification System Known Issues Direct Certification Online Training		
	- Direct Continuation Online Haining		

STUDENT SEARCH TAB

Public School Search

The Public School Student Search screen is used to search for students by manually entering criteria and searching against DSHS client records. After selecting a record from the returned search results, a second search can then be conducted against student school data in order to match a DSHS client's record to a student's school record.

DSHS Client Record Search

As the default, the system will search only those DSHS Client Records that have not yet been matched to a student school record. Clicking the box to include matched records will cause the system to also search against students who have already been matched to a DSHS client record.

The DSHS Client Record Search screen allows the school district user to utilize three different searches. See Figure 1.

- <u>Exact Match Search</u> Performs search based on exact matching to a DSHS client record. If data is entered in multiple Exact Match fields, results will be returned in the following order, up to 50 results:
 - Matches to Basic Food ID
 - Matches to TANF ID
 - Matches to Medicaid ID

- Matches to DSHS Client ID
- Matches to Last 4 SSN
- <u>Name Search</u> Data can be entered in 1 or more Name Search fields. Results will be returned based on the most likely matches first, up to 50 results. A wildcard (*) can be used in both the Last Name and First Name fields.
- 3. <u>Optional Fields</u> Data can be entered in 1 or more Optional Search fields. Results will be returned based on the most likely matches first, up to 50 results. A wildcard (*) can be used in the School Name, Street Address and City fields. Zip Code field will only search on an exact match.

	t				Yakima School Distr
chool Year 2018-2019					
DSHS CLIENT RECORD SEARCH					
Exact Match Search 🖲			ude matched records in search results?	0	
Search will only return results for re	ecords that are an exact match to	data entered into one of these fields.			
Basic Food ID	TANF ID	Medicaid ID	DSHS Client ID	Last 4 SSN	
results for Anderson)					
Last Name	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Optional Search Fields	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Continue Solidation Continue Solidatio Continue Solidation Continue Solidation Continue Solidation Contin	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Optional Search Fields Wild card searches may be used School Name	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Continue Soft Audersoft Continue Soft August Continue Soft August Continue Soft August Continue Conti	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Continue Soft Audresoft Soft Soft Soft Soft Soft Soft Soft S	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		
Continue Soft Addression Continue Soft Addression Continue Street Address Continue Street Addres Continue Street Address Continue Street Address Cont	Middle Initial	First Name	Birth Date		

Figure 1

DSHS Client Record Search Results

When searching for a DSHS Client Record, there are three possible search outcomes:

- No possible matches
- Exact match
- Possible matches

No Possible Match

If the system cannot find a single match, either exact or possible, based on the search criteria entered, a message is displayed to the user. See Figure 2.

User may click the DSHS Client Record Search bar to return to the search criteria screen and search again by entering different data in the search fields.

Figure 2

Dashboard	District List Student Search Reports Admin Log	out
Student	Search Tool Default	
School	Year 2018-2019	
DSHS CLI	IENT RECORD SEARCH	Ŧ
DSHS CLI	IENT SEARCH RESULTS (0 out of 0 search results displayed)	▲
No possib	le matches were found for the search criteria you entered.	
		_

Exact Matches

If an exact match is found based on user-entry in one of the exact match fields, the screen will display the exact DSHS Client Search Results. Information for the DSHS Client will displayed exactly as it is listed in the DSHS file. See Figure 3.

Figure 3

ool Year	2018	-2019										
HS CLIENT REG	CORD S	EARCH										
HS CLIENT SEA	ARCH R	ESULTS (1 out	of 1 search res	ults displaye								
ased on the s lick a record xact Search I Last Name	search in the Result	criteria enter grid to select s (displaying 1 First Name	ed, we have i it and retriev of 1 results) Birth Date	dentified th re eligibilty i TANF ID	e following lis	Medicaid	Last 4 S	s School Name	Street Address	City	Zip Code	Print Matche
	J	Manarita	-	Manarah	Manual Vol.	0	Marrie 1			-	-	N

Possible Matches

If search criteria is entered in the Name Search and/or Optional Search fields. Separate results will be returned for each search section based on the most likely matches first, up to 50 results. Information for each DSHS Client will displayed exactly as it is listed in the DSHS file. See Figure 4.

Figure 4

HS CLIENT RE	CORD S	SEARCH											
HS CLIENT SE	ARCH R	ESULTS (50 out	of 192 search	results displ	ayed)								
Based on the Click a record Name Search	search in the Result	criteria entere grid to select it s (displaying 50	d, we have i t and retriev 0 of 192 res	dentified th re eligibilty i ults)	e following lis	t of DSHS C	lient Result	5				Print	
Last Name	MI	First Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food	Medicaid	Last 4 S	School Name	Street Address	City	Zip Code	Matche	
	J	Manarith			1040464	0	-			Manarith		N	1
	в	-		0		1040488				-		N	
	R	Management of		10404865		0				Minor Chi	1040468	N	
	R	-		0	0	110000000	-			-		N	
	м	Manarith		0	0		-			Minute Value		N	
	R	-		0	0		-			-		N	
	E	Management of		0	0					Manarith		- L	
	0			0	0		-			-		N	,
	c	and the second s				0				and the second s		1.1	

DSHS Client Record Selected

To view DSHS Eligibility Data for a record, select it in the grid and click the Next button. Eligibility information or the selected record will display. District users may print this screen, retain in their records and begin serving the student. See Figure 5.

Figure 5

HS CLIENT RE	CORD	SEARCH										
HS CLIENT RE	CORD	SELECTED										
												Pri
Last Name	MI	First Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food	Medicaid	. Last 4 S	School Name	Street Address	City	Zip Code	Matche
	1	Maserick		1245464	1245468	0	1245-6665			Mastrik	100.000	N
		Data Eligibla	Peacon ()	ualified	Foster	Ce	dars C					
DSHS Client I	id	Date Lilyide	iteason Q	uumicu								

Student School Record Search

After selecting a record in the DSHS Client Record grid, District users can then search the CEDARS student data base for the same student and attempt to make a permanent match between the two records.

When searching for a DSHS Client Record, there are three possible search outcomes:

- No possible matches
- Exact match
- Possible matches

No Possible Match

If the system cannot find a single match, either exact or possible, based on the search criteria entered, a message is displayed to the user. See Figure 6.

User may click the Student School Data Search bar to return to the search criteria screen and search again by entering different data in the search fields.

Figure 6

HS CLIENT RE	CORD S	SEARCH										
HS CLIENT RE	CORD S	SELECTED										
												Pri
Last Name	MI	First Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food	Medicaid	Last 4 S	School Name	Street Address	City	Zip Code	Matche
	A	Manerick		0	10004045	1245-8885	22454845			Maneral	12454645	N
DSHS Client	d	Date Eligible	Reason Q	ualified	Foster	Ceda	ars C					
4380875		07/15/2018	Free via Medic	aid	N	6	<u>^</u>					
							*					
UDENT SCHOO	DL DATA	SEARCH										
UDENT SCHO		SEARCH RESUL	TS (0 out of 0	search res	ults displayed)							

Exact Matches

If an exact match is found based on user-entry in one of the exact match fields, the screen will display the exact DSHS Client Search Results. Information for the DSHS Client will displayed exactly as it is listed in the DSHS file. See Figure 7.

-

Figure 7

SHS CLIENT RE	CORD S	SEARCH										
SHS CLIENT RE	CORD S	SELECTED										
here is no curr int this page ar may serve as p	r ent en Id retail roof the	rollment record n it for your reco e student is eligil	d for this stu rds. Until you ble to receive	dent in yo Ir LEA repor free or redu	ur district so the ts this student's uced meals.	enrollment to	nnot be mat o OSPI via CE	ched. DARS,				
Last Name	MI	First Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food	Medicaid	Last 4 S	School Name	Street Address	City	Zip Code	Matche
	A	Manetal		0	1245-6845	12454685	1040			Manarith	2245468	N
DSHS Client I	d	Date Eligible	Reason Q	ualified	Foster	Ceda	ars C					
4380875		07/15/2018	Free via Medic	aid	N	6	$\hat{}$					
TUDENT SCHOO)L DATA	SEARCH										
TUDENT SCHOO	OL RECO	liddle Name	First Namo	Rid	th Data SSI	D	District ID	Zin Cod	o School District	School Namo	Go	Matchod?
LOCE NOMO	1.	nuule Manie	r ii st ivaine	Diri	ui Date 551	U	DISTICTID	Zip Cou	e School District	School Manie	Ge	matcheu:

Possible Matches

If search criteria is entered in the Name Search and/or Optional Search fields. Separate results will be returned for each search section based on the most likely matches first, up to 50 results. Information for each student will display exactly as it is listed in the CEDARS student record. See Figure 8.

Figure 8

IS CLIENT REC	CORD SE	ELECTED											
													Pri
ast Name	MI	First Name	Birth Date	TANF ID	Basic Food	Medicaid	Last 4 SSN Sch	ol Name S	treet Address	City	Zip Code	e Matched	17
No.	A	Masserick	0	, ,	Manager 12	Manarith	Manerick		Manarith	Manarith	-		
SHS Client Id	ł	Date Eligible	Reason Qualifi	ied F	oster	Cedars C.							
0875		07/15/2018	Free via Medicaid	N		6	^						
							\sim						
ENT SCHOO ENT SCHOO sed on the s ck a record	L DATA L DATA search o in the g	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident	earch resu	ults displayed) following list	of student rec	ords					Pri	in
DENT SCHOO DENT SCHOO sed on the s ick a record ime Search I	L DATA L DATA search in the g Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it a (displaying 34	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results)	earch resu	ults displayed) following list	of student rec	ords					Pri	in
ENT SCHOO ENT SCHOO sed on the s ck a record me Search I ast Name	L DATA L DATA search in the Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it a (displaying 34 liddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	earch resu tified the Birt	ults displayed) following list	of student rec	ords District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen	Pri Matched?	in
ENT SCHOO ENT SCHOO sed on the s ck a record me Search I ist Name	L DATA L DATA search in the g Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it a (displaying 34 liddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	tified the Birt	tollowing list	of student rec	ords District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen	Pri Matched? N	in
DENT SCHOOL DENT SCHOOL Sed on the s ck a record me Search I ast Name	L DATA L DATA search o in the o Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it a (displaying 34 liddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	tified the	ults displayed) following list	of student rec	ords District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen F	Pri Matched? N	in
DENT SCHOOL DENT SCHOOL Sed on the s ck a record me Search I ast Name	L DATA L DATA search o in the o Results M	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria enterec grid to select it a (displaying 34 Hiddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	tified the Birt	h Date SS	of student rec	ords District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen F M M	Pri Matched? N N N	in
DENT SCHOOL DENT SCHOOL Sed on the s ck a record me Search I ast Name	L DATA L DATA search (in the (Results M	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entereo grid to select it a (displaying 34 Iiddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	tified the Birt	ults displayed) following list	of student rec	District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen F M M	Pri Matched? N N N	in
DENT SCHOOL DENT SCHOOL sed on the s ck a record me Search I ast Name	L DATA search (in the g Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it (displaying 34 liddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	tified the	alts displayed) following list	of student rec	District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen F M M F	Pri Matched? N N N N N	int
DENT SCHOOL DENT SCHOOL sed on the s ck a record ame Search I ast Name	L DATA search o in the o Results	SEARCH SEARCH RESULT criteria entered grid to select it 6 (displaying 34 tiddle Name	S (34 out of 34 s I, we have ident of 34 results) First Name	earch resu tified the Birt	alts displayed) following list	of student rec	District ID	Zip Code	School District	School Name	Gen F M M F F	Pri Matched? N N N N N N	in

Student School Data Search Results

Exact and Possible matches are displayed in the Student School Data Search Results grid. If you identify a student record in this grid that matches the DSHS Client Record you selected, click the record in the grid to select it.

After selecting the student record, there are two possible outcomes:

- Match cannot be confirmed
- Confirm Match

Match Cannot be Confirmed

A match cannot be completed if there is no enrollment record for the selected student record in the same district as the district user. District user will receive the message "There is no current enrollment record for this student in your district so the record could not be matched. Print this page and retain it for your records. Until your LEA reports this student's enrollment to OSPI, it may serve as proof the student is eligible to receive free or reduced meals."

Confirm Match

A permanent match can be completed if the selected student record is enrolled in the same district as the district user.

District user can select the record in the grid and click the Next button. A Match button will display. Clicking the Match button will display a Confirm Match modal. See Figure 9.

Figure 9

Confirm Match ×
The match you selected identifies the student as eligible for free or reduced meals. Click "Yes, Save Match" to confirm the match and save. This student will be saved as qualification code 6 (Free via Medicaid). Do you wish to proceed?
Yes, Save Match No, Go Back

Clicking Yes, Save Match will save match to the District List – All Matches for Free or the District List – All Matches Free or Reduced by Medicaid – depending on the eligibility criteria of the selected DSHS Client Record.

Private School Online Search

When conducting an online search, a private school will use the DSHS Record Search screen and enter data in the Exact Match, Name Search and/or Optional Search fields.

After search results are returned, the private school user can select a record in the search results grid and click the Next button to display eligibility data for the selected record. Private School users may print this screen, retain in their records and begin serving the student.

Private School users will not have the ability to search for Student School Records or make permanent matches between DSHS Client Records and Student School Records.

Private School File Search

Private Schools also have the option to upload a list of their students to the Direct Certification system. The system will compare the list of enrolled students against the list of DSHS clients to see if any matches exist. See Figure 10.

Figure 10

Dashboard	District List	Student Search	Reports Admin	Logout
				Christ the King School
School	Year 2017	-2018		
Click "Sel	ect. ¹ to select :	vour student list file	and then click the "Submit"	Student List Templates
button.	files	your station hat he		If you do not already have a student list, please select a template to download from the dropdown list below. Fill the template with your student information to create your student list and then upload the list at left.
Submit]			Excel (.xls)
Search Re	sult			•

Downloading a File Template

Prior to uploading, private schools must first create a properly formatted upload file. To expedite this process, the Direct Certification system provides the ability to download a Student List Template.

After downloading the template, private school users can use the template to add student enrollment data and save to their local system. For each enrolled student, the list must contain the First Name, Last Name, and Date of Birth.

Uploading a Student List

The private school user must click to browse their local system, select and Submit their formatted upload file.

The system will compare each student listed in the upload file with the complete DSHS client list. For those students where an exact match was identified based on First Name, Last Name and Date of Birth, the system will return TANF ID, Basic Food ID, Medicaid ID and Eligibility Date as they exist in the DSHS file, and Last 4 SSN and Zip Code for each matched student.

Troubleshooting for Public LEAs

Issue: Student is Enrolled in My LEA but Does Not Appear in My LEA's District List

Description of the Issue

According to the enrolled student list that is present in your district's POS system, or that you have received through other means, a particular student is enrolled in your LEA. You believe that this student should be directly certified, but the student is not listed in District List for your LEA.

Cause of the Issue

There are several reasons why this situation might occur:

- The student is not eligible to receive free meals via direct certification, according to the data received from DSHS.
- According to the data that your LEA has uploaded to CEDARS, the student is not currently enrolled in your LEA.
- The student's name and birth date that your LEA uploaded to CEDARS are too different from the student's corresponding DSHS data to be matched by the system.

How to Fix It

Perform the following steps to resolve this situation or find a match for the student:

- Check the summary list in Near Matches to see if the student is listed there. If so, review the near matches identified for the student and select the appropriate match if there is one.
- 2. In Student Search, search for this student using the student's first and last name and birth date as they appear in your POS system or enrollment list. If the student is found, this likely means that the student does not have a current enrollment record in your LEA according to CEDARS. You should discuss this matter with your LEA's district data manager.
- 3. In Student Search, try to find an exact or possible match for the student using different combinations of data. You can try the following techniques, among others:
 - If you know the student's Basic Food ID or TANF ID, perform a search using just this data.
 - If the student has a hyphenated first or last name, try searching with only part of the hyphenated name. (Ex.: If the student's name is Mary Johnson-Smith, try searching with the name Mary Johnson or Mary Smith.)
 - Try searching on just the student's name, with no birth date.

If you are unable to find a record for the student even as a possible match, it is likely that the student is not currently eligible to receive free meals via direct certification according to the data received from DSHS for the current school year. Although a student was directly certified last school year, they may not necessarily be directly certified this school year. 4. If you are able to locate the student on a Possible Matches list, perform a new search for that student using the First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date displayed for that student in the list. The system should find an exact match for the student, and you can print this information or download it and import it into your POS system.

Issue: My District List Match Count is Lower than Expected at Beginning of School Year

Description of the Issue

Based on the number of matches that you had in your LEA at the end of the previous school year, you believe that the number of matches displayed for your LEA at the beginning of a new school year is too low.

Cause of the Issue

The number of direct certification matches that your LEA had at the end of the previous school year is not necessarily an accurate prediction of how many matches you should see at the beginning of the new school year for several reasons:

- Your match count at the end of a school year is based on an entire year's worth of compiled DSHS data. For a new school year, the matching process uses only the DSHS data that has been received since July 1. Any student whom DSHS reported as eligible at some point last school year, but who has not been reported as eligible from July 1 through present, is not currently eligible to receive benefits and will not be displayed as a match.
- Your District List matches at the end of the school year include all students who were enrolled in your LEA at the end of the school year and who matched DSHS records. Your District List matches at the beginning of the new school year do not include any student who has exited your LEA, according to the data that your LEA has uploaded to CEDARS.
- Until your LEA performs its initial CEDARS upload for the school year, any newly enrolled students will not be available to the Direct Certification system for matching.

How to Fix It

This difference in count is normal and expected at the start of a new school year. One thing you can do to ensure that all eligible students are included in your District List is to request for your LEA's district data manager to ensure that your LEA's latest student list has been uploaded to CEDARS.

Issue: Student Search Does Not Find a Particular Student Who is Enrolled in My LEA

Description of the Issue

You have used Student Search to try to match a student, but you have not been able to find a direct certification match for the student.

Cause of the Issue

There are two reasons why this situation can occur:

- The search criteria that you have entered is not a close enough match with the student's data received from DSHS.
- The student is not eligible to receive free meals via direct certification, according to the data received from DSHS.

How to Fix It

Perform the following steps to find a match for the student:

- 1. In Student Search, try to find an exact or possible match for the student using different combinations of data. You can try the following techniques, among others:
 - If the student has a hyphenated first or last name, try searching with only part of the hyphenated name. (Ex.: If the student's name is Mary Johnson-Smith, try searching with the name Mary Johnson or Mary Smith.)
 - Try searching on just the student's name, with no birth date.
 - If you know the student's Basic Food ID or TANF ID, perform a search using just this data.

If you are unable to find a record for the student even as a possible match, it is likely that the student is not currently eligible to receive free meals via direct certification according to the data received from DSHS for the current school year. Although a student was directly certified last school year, they may not necessarily be directly certified this school year.

2. If you are able to locate the student on a Possible Matches list, perform a new search for that student using the First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date displayed for that student in the list. The system should find an exact match for the student, and you can print this information or download it and import it into your POS system.

Issue: My District List Displays Multiple Different Matches for the Same Student

Description of the Issue

A student appears in your District List multiple times. The school name, State Student ID, District Student ID, student name, and birth date in each match are the same, but the Basic Food ID, TANF ID, address, and other demographic data are different.

Cause of the Issue

This situation occurs when multiple students have been assigned to the same State Student ID in CEDARS, and more than one of those students is eligible to receive benefits through direct certification. In your District List, you see the school name, student ID, student name, and birth date for the student who is enrolled in your LEA, but you see the DSHS demographic data for each student in the state who shares the same State Student ID with your student and who is directly certified.

How to Fix It

This is a student data issue that must be corrected by your LEA's district data manager. Contact your district data manager and inform them you believe you have found a student in your LEA who is sharing a State Student ID with one or more other students. Provide your district data manager with the student's State Student ID, name, and birth date.

Issue: My POS System Cannot Process the Match List That I Downloaded

Description of the Issue

You downloaded a student match list, either from District List or Student Search, and attempted to upload the file to your POS system. The POS system returned an error message of some kind stating that it could not process the file.

Cause of the Issue

Two possible causes of this issue are:

- Your POS system expects the data to include the CEDARS I10 code (the "reason qualified" code) for each student, and you did not include the code when you downloaded the data from the Direct Certification system, or else your POS does not expect the CEDARS I10 code to be included, and you did include the code in your download.
- Your POS system expects the file to be in a different format than the one you tried to upload to the system.

There are other possible causes for issues relating to POS systems, but they are often specific to the type of POS system being used, and if your situation is not covered here you should request support from your POS system vendor.

How to Fix It

Confirm from your POS system documentation whether or not the CEDARS I10 code should be included in your student data, and which types of file formats are valid for files uploaded to the system. Be sure that the student list file that you download from the Direct Certification system conforms to your POS system's upload requirements.

Private LEAs: Using the Direct Certification System

Using Student Search to Find Student Matches

Users from private LEAs can find and display direct certification matches using the Student Search feature.

There are two different methods of searching for students available to private LEAs:

- File Upload
- Online Search

This section will guide you through using Student Search to find directly certified students in your LEA.

Student Search Outcomes

When you search for a student using the Student Search feature, there are three different search outcomes possible. They are:

- Exact match
- Possible matches
- No matches found

Creating and Uploading a Student List

The fastest way to determine which of your LEA's enrolled students are directly certified to receive free meals is to upload a student list to the Direct Certification system. A student list should contain all students who are enrolled in your LEA.

Creating a Student List Upload File

Before you can upload your student list to the Direct Certification system, you must create a properly structured and formatted upload file. The system helps to expedite this process by providing upload file templates for you to download.

Downloading an Upload File Template To download an upload file template:

1. If you are not already on the Student Search (Private Schools) page, click the Student Search tab at the top of the screen.

2. Click the File Search banner to expand the file upload area.

School Year 2013-2014		
This feature allows you to determine if a stude Search" panel below, or upload a list of stude	ent is eligible to receive free meals benefits through Direct Certi nts to search, by selecting the "File Search" option below.	fication. It allows you to search for an individual student, by using the "Online
Online Search		<u>م</u>
Enter student information Please note: First and Last Name or TAN At least one of the fields marked with an a First Name* TANF ID*	F ID <i>or</i> Basic Food ID is required . Other fields are optional. sterisk (*) must be completed. Last Name* Middle Name	Birthdate
Basic Food (SNAP) ID*	Last Four Digits of SSN	
Search this student	Clear form	
File Search		یہ ۲ ۲

3. On the right side of the file upload area, under Student List Templates, expand the list and click the file format that you want to use for your upload template, either

Excel (.xls) or CSV.	
School Year 2013-2014	
— This feature allows you to determine if a student is eligible to receive free meals benefi Search" panel below, or upload a list of students to search, by selecting the "File Search"	ts through Direct Certification. It allows you to search for an individual student, by using the "Online h" option below.
Online Search	*
File Search	
Click "Select" to select your student list file and then click the "Submit" button. Select Submit	Student List Templates If you do not already have a student list, please select a template to download from the dropdown list below. Fill the template with your student information to create your student list and then upload the list at left. Please select a student list template Excel (.xis)
Search Result	CSV

Either file type can be edited in Microsoft Excel, while comma-separated value (CSV) files can also be edited using other programs. The recommended format for your upload file is CSV.

- 4. With a file format selected, click Download a Template.
- 5. Your Web browser will ask you if you want to open or save the download file. Save the file to your computer.
- 6. Locate the downloaded file and open it using the compatible application of your choice so that you can begin adding data to the file.

Notice that the upload file contains the following columns (* indicates a required column):

• First Name*

- Middle Name
- Last Name*
- Birth Date*
- TANF ID
- Basic Food ID
- Last 4 of SSN (the last four digits of the student's Social Security number)
- Zip Code

Adding Enrollment Data to Your Upload File

Once you have downloaded an upload file template, you must add your LEA's enrollment data to the upload file. There are numerous ways to do this, depending on which program you are using to edit the file and how you are entering the data. Regardless of your method for creating the file, there are a few rules you must follow and some tips you should heed:

- In order for the system to find an exact match for a record, the record must include First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date.
- Birth Date must follow one of the following formats, using either slashes or dashes to separate

the digits: M/D/YY, MM/DD/YY, M/D/YYYY, or MM/DD/YYYY.

- The TANF ID, Basic Food ID, and Last 4 of SSN columns must contain only numbers.
- The Last 4 of SSN column must contain exactly four digits.
- The Zip Code column must contain only numbers and (optionally, in the case of a 9-digit zip code) a dash.
- You should give your file an easy to distinguish name when you save it. You will need to access this file each time you upload your student list to the Direct Certification system.
- If you downloaded the Excel template and you are using a newer version of Microsoft Excel

(version 2007 or later), Excel's default file format when you save the file will be XLSX. Change the selected format to XLS before saving the file, so that the Direct Certification system will be able to read the file when you upload it.

• Keep your student list file updated as students enroll in or leave your LEA, so that you will always have an up-to-date file when it is time to upload the file and get your latest direct certification match list.

Note: At present, the File Search feature does not match on fields other than First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date. The remaining fields have been included in the template for possible future use.

Uploading a Student List

Once you have finished creating your student list upload file, you are ready to submit it to the Direct Certification system for matching. To do this:

1. If you are not already on the Student Search (Private Schools) page, click the Student

Search tab at the top of the screen.

- 2. Click the File Search banner to expand the file upload area.
- 3. On the left side of the file upload area, click Select.
- 4. In the window that opens, browse to find the upload file on your computer, select it, and click

Open.

The file name is displayed below the Select button. Check the file name and ensure that this is the file you want to submit for matching. If it is not, click Remove, and then click Select again and choose the file you want.

5. When you are ready for the system to begin finding matches for the students in your file, click

Submit.

School Year 2013-2014	
This feature allows you to determine if a student is eligible to receive free meals benefits th Search" panel below, or upload a list of students to search, by selecting the "File Search" or Online Search	rough Direct Certification. It allows you to search for an individual student, by using the "Online ption below.
File Search	
Click "Select" to select your student list file and then click the "Submit" button. Select Sample_Upload_File.csv © Remove	Student List Templates If you do not already have a student list, please select a template to download from the dropdown list below. Fill the template with your student information to create your student list and then upload the list at left. Please select a student list template Download a Template
Search Result	*

Depending on the number of students in the file, the matching process will take anywhere from a few seconds to a few minutes.

When the system finishes processing all of the records in your student list upload file, it displays the results in the Search Result area of the Student Search page. File searches return only exact matches (see "Displaying Exact Matches" on page 33 for more information).

Manually Entering Search Criteria

In addition to submitting a student list upload file for matching, you can also search individually for students using the Online Search feature. To do this:

- 1. If you are not already on the Student Search page, click the Student Search tab at the top of the screen.
- 2. If the area is not already displayed, click the Online Search banner to expand the online search area.

arch" panel below, or upload a list of st	tudent is eligible to receive free meals benefits through Direct Certific udents to search, by selecting the "File Search" option below.	ication. It allows you to search for an individual student, by using the "Online
line Search		
inter student information		
lease note: First and Last Name or T t least one of the fields marked with a irst Name*	ANF ID or Basic Food ID is required . Other fields are optional. an asterisk (*) must be completed. Last Name*	Birthdate
ANE ID*	Middle Name	Tin Code
Basic Food (SNAP) ID*	Last Four Digits of SSN	

- 3. In the boxes provided, enter search data for the student. To perform a search, you must enter at least one of these three values or sets of values:
 - First Name <u>and Last Name</u>
 - TANF ID
 - Basic Food (SNAP) ID

In addition, you can also include any of the following search values:

- Birth Date
- Middle Name
- Zip Code
- School Name
- Last Four Digits of SSN

All searches can produce at least a list of possible matches for the entered student data. To find an exact match if one exists, enter just the following three values:

- First Name
- Last Name
- Birth Date

4. When you are ready to perform the search, click Search.

Once you start a search, what happens next depends on the search criteria that you entered:

- If you entered only First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date in your search criteria, the system will attempt to find an exact match for your criteria (see "Displaying Exact Matches" on page 33).
- If you entered search criteria other than only First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date, the system will attempt to find possible matches for your criteria (see "Reviewing Possible Matches" on page 34).

Displaying Exact Matches

If you performed a File Search and your student data included First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date, or you performed an Online Search and your student data consisted only of First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date, and any exact matches were found, the system displays the match view shown below:

chool Y	/ear 2013-2	2014									
This featur Search" pa	e allows you to d nel below, or upl	etermine if a stu oad a list of stud	ident is eli lents to se	gible to receive arch, by selecti	free meals be ng the "File Se	nefits through Dire arch" option belov	ect Certificatio v.	n. It allows you to :	search for an indivi	dual student, l	oy using the "Online
Online Sea	irch										
File Search	1										
Search Re	sult										
MATCH FO IMPORT This pag	UND - Based on t ANT: Download re serves as you	the student infor or print this p ir proof that ea	mation tha age and r ach studer	etain it for yo nt listed is elig	, each student ur records. gible to receiv	listed below is eliq ve free meals.	jible to receive	e free meals benefi	CSV (Text	cation.	Download Print
			Initial	Birth Date	TANF ID	Bas Food ID	Fos Care	Address 1	Address 2	City	Zip Code
School	Last Name	First Name	Inda	A CONTRACTOR OF A							

You should download or print the match data displayed.

- To download the match data, on the right side of the Search Result area, select a file format (Excel, CSV, or Tab-Delimited Text) and click Download.
- To print the match data, click Print.

Once you have downloaded or printed the data and have a copy for your records, you should begin serving the student.

Reviewing Possible Matches

When an exact match cannot be found for your search criteria, the system will attempt to identify possible matches instead. Possible matches are displayed in a match view like the

is feature a arch" pane	allows you to al below, or up	determine if a s load a list of st	tudent is elig udents to sea	ible to receive fr arch, by selecting	ree meals t g the "File !	enefits throug Search" option	h Direct Cer below.	rtification. It allow	s you to searc	h for an indi	vidual st	udent, by usi	ing the "Onlir
line Searc	h												
e Search													
arch Resu													
sible mat	ches between	the search data	a that you en	tered and the re	cords recei	ved from DSH	5 are displa	yed below.					
sible mat st Name	ches between First Name	the search data Middle Name	a that you en Birth Date	tered and the re Last 4 of SSN	cords recei	ved from DSH Bas Food ID	5 are displa Fos Care	yed below. Address 1	Address 2	City	State	Zip Code	Pr School Na
sible mat	ches between First Name	the search data Middle Name	a that you en Birth Date	tered and the re Last 4 of SSN	TANF ID	ved from DSH Bas Food ID	5 are displa Fos Care N	yed below. Address 1	Address 2	City	State	Zip Code	School Na
isible mat	ches between First Name	the search data	a that you en Birth Date	tered and the re Last 4 of SSN	TANF ID	ved from DSHS Bas Food ID	Fos Care N	yed below. Address 1	Address 2	City	State	Zip Code	Pr School Na

If the student that you are trying to find is listed in the possible matches, you can print the possible matches view for your records and begin serving the student. To do this, click Print.

You can also use the possible matches view as a way to get the search data needed to find an exact match in the system. To do this, you would note the first name, last name, and birth date of the student in question, and then perform a new search using just that data. The system should then identify the student as an exact match.

When No Matches are Found

If the system cannot find any matches, either exact or possible, for your search criteria, a message is displayed stating this.

Starting a New Search

Once you have performed a search and you are ready to perform another one, click either the Online Search or File Search banner, whichever kind of search you want to perform. The selected search criteria entry area is expanded.

If you select Online Search and your previous search was also an Online Search, the search criteria area displays the criteria that you entered for your previous search. If you simply want to modify your previous search, reusing some of the same criteria, make the appropriate changes to your criteria. If you want to start a brand new search, click Clear Form to empty all of the search fields of their values, and then enter your new search criteria. Once you have entered the criteria for your new or revised search, click Search.

If you select File Search, select the file that you want to upload, and click Submit.

Troubleshooting for Private LEAs

Issue: Student Search Does Not Find a Particular Student Who is Enrolled in My LEA

Description of the Issue

You have used Student Search to try to match a student, but you have not been able to find a direct certification match for the student.

Cause of the Issue

There are two reasons why this situation can occur:

- The search criteria that you have entered is not a close enough match with the student's data received from DSHS.
- The student is not eligible to receive free meals via direct certification, according to the data received from DSHS.

How to Fix It

Perform the following steps to find a match for the student:

- 1. In Student Search, try to find an exact or possible match for the student using different combinations of data. You can try the following techniques, among others:
 - If the student has a hyphenated first or last name, try searching with only part of the hyphenated name. (Ex.: If the student's name is Mary Johnson-Smith, try searching with the name Mary Johnson or Mary Smith.)
 - Try searching on just the student's name, with no birth date.
 - If you know the student's Basic Food ID or TANF ID, perform a search using just this data.

If you are unable to find a record for the student even as a possible match, it is likely that the student is not currently eligible to receive free meals via direct certification according to the data received from DSHS for the current school year. Although a student was directly certified last school year, they may not necessarily be directly certified this school year.

2. If you are able to locate the student on a Possible Matches list, perform a new search for that student using the First Name, Last Name, and Birth Date displayed for that student in the list. The system should find an exact match for the student, and you can download or print this information.



Except where otherwise noted, this work by the <u>Office of Superintendent of</u> <u>Public Instruction</u> is licensed under a <u>Creative Commons Attribution License</u>.

Please make sure that permission has been received to use all elements of this publication (images, charts, text, etc.) that are not created by OSPI staff, grantees, or contractors. This permission should be displayed as an attribution statement in the manner specified by the copyright holder. It should be made clear that the element is one of the "except where otherwise noted" exceptions to the OSPI open license.

For additional information, please visit the OSPI Interactive Copyright and Licensing Guide.

OSPI provides equal access to all programs and services without discrimination based on sex, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability, or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability. Questions and complaints of alleged discrimination should be directed to the Equity and Civil Rights Director at 360-725-6162 or P.O. Box 47200 Olympia, WA 98504-7200.

Download this material in PDF at http://www.k12.wa.us/. This material is available in alternative format upon request. Contact the Resource Center at 888-595-3276, TTY 360-664-3631.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form (PDF), (AD-3027) found online at: http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; fax: (202) 690-7442; or email: program.intake@usda.gov.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider.



Chris Reykdal • State Superintendent Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction Old Capitol Building • P.O. Box 47200 Olympia, WA 98504-7200